

THE EFFECT OF MATHEMATICS PROBLEM-SOLVING ABILITY AND LEARNING INDEPENDENCE ON MATHEMATICS LEARNING ACHIEVEMENT IN ONLINE LEARNING

Joko Purwanto¹, Isyifa Noor Rahma², Gunawan^{3*}, Jaka Wijaya Kusuma⁴

^{1,2,3}Pendidikan Matematika, Universitas Muhammadiyah Purwokerto

⁴Universitas Bina Bangsa

Email: gun.ogc@gmail.com

Abstract

The COVID-19 pandemic has made face-to-face learning abolished and substituted by online learners, causing the value of mathematical learning performance to fall. It is possible that mathematical problem-solving skills and learning independence are variables that affect the reduction in learning achievement in mathematics. This study aimed to examine the effect of partial and simultaneous mathematical problem-solving ability and independent learning on mathematics learning achievement. This study was carried out at SMP N 1 Purwokerto, with the population was class IX SMP N 1 Purwokerto, the sample selected by cluster random sampling was class IX H SMP N 1 Purwokerto. A quantitative study using the ex-post-facto method was used in this study. Tests, surveys, and score documents were used to collect data. Validity and reliability assessments were completed on the tests and surveys. A precondition test, such as a normality test, multicollinearity test, heteroscedasticity test, and linearity test, was performed on the questionnaire test results. After that, a multiple linear regression model and test the hypothesis were formed using coefficients of determination, partial test, and simultaneous test methods. $Y=49,280+0,107X_1+0,378X_2$ was the linear regression model formed. According to the findings, mathematical problem-solving skills showed a significant effect on the learning achievement of 10.7%. Learning autonomy had a 37.8% positive effect on learning achievement. Simultaneously, the ability to solve mathematical problems and autonomous learning had a 70.7% significant effect on learning achievement.

Keywords: Independent Learning, Mathematics Learning Achievement, Mathematical Problem Solving Ability, Online Learning,

INTRODUCTION

The Covid-19 pandemic requires that face-to-face learning in schools be abolished. Students must learn at their respective homes or Study From Home, which is carried out online or online using various online platforms. All learning in schools is carried out online, including learning mathematics. Online learning affects student learning achievement. Learning achievement is the success of learning activity in the form of numbers or letters representing each child's success over a certain period (Tirtonegoro, 2011). Learning achievement may be influenced by mathematical problem-solving ability and independent learning. To understand well, it is necessary to know the definition of mathematical problem-solving ability and independent learning.

According to the National Professional Certification Agency BNSP, students' problem-solving abilities are strategic competencies shown by students when they can understand problems, can choose problem-solving strategies, and can solve mathematical models to solve problems. Afifah et al. (2019) states that problem-solving ability affects student learning achievement by 54.36%, so it is proven that mathematical problem-solving ability has a role in student learning achievement in mathematics. Meanwhile, to measure how far students' mathematical problem-solving abilities are needed indicators. The indicators of problem-solving ability, according to Polya, that will be used in this research are as follows: 1) understanding the problem (Understanding the problem), 2) developing

Commented [U1]: This introductory section is still very minimal theory.

Commented [U2]: Please change it to "(1)", etc.

a strategy for solving a plan (Devising a plan), 3) solving problems appropriately with planning (Carrying out the plan), 4) check or re-evaluate (Looking back).

In addition to problem-solving skills, independent learning is very much needed in online learning. The teacher is only accompanied through the online platform, which means the teacher cannot guide directly. This is supported by the opinion of Kuo et al. (2014), who state that online learning is more student-centered so that it can foster student independence in learning. Research Uki & Ilham (2020) says that 72.59% of the influence given by the variable of learning independence on mathematics learning achievement. It is proven that learning independence has a role in students' learning achievement in mathematics. The indicators that will be used in this study refer to Sugandi (2013), who defines indicators of student learning independence: 1) learning initiatives; 2) diagnosis of learning needs; 3) set learning objectives; 4) view learning difficulties as challenges; 5) find and use relevant learning resources; 6) determine and implement learning strategies; 7) evaluate the learning process and results; 8) self-concept. Based on the explanation above, the problem formulations that can be made are 1) There is a positive influence of mathematical problem-solving ability on mathematics learning achievement in online learning; 2) There is a positive influence of learning independence on mathematics learning achievement in online learning; 3) There is a positive influence of mathematical problem-solving ability and learning independence on mathematics learning achievement in online learning.

Commented [U3]: Please change it to "(1)", etc.

METHOD

Research This research was conducted at SMP Negeri 1 Purwokerto in the even semester of the 2021/2022 academic year. The population in this study was class IX SMP Negeri 1 Purwokerto and the sample selected by cluster random sampling was class IX H SMP N 1 Purwokerto. The type of research used is quantitative research using the ex-post-facto method. Ex-post facto research is research with independent variables that had occurred before the study was conducted, the independent variables in this study did not receive special treatment. Still, it only revealed facts based on the measurement of symptoms that already existed in students. The effect of the independent variable on the dependent will naturally occur without researcher intervention (Sukardi, 2013).

Commented [U4]: I do not recommend writing down the complete location of your research unless you attach a certificate of availability of research subjects to reveal their identities.

Research data collection techniques using primary data and secondary data. Primary data is a test instrument for the mathematical problem-solving ability variable, consisting of 3 limited description questions including four indicators of mathematical problem-solving ability. Then, a questionnaire for the learning independence variable was composed of 15 statements with five alternative answers (always, often, sometimes, rarely, never). The secondary data is the PAT score document for the mathematics learning achievement variable.

Validity test

Sugiyono (2015) reveals that an instrument that can measure what should be measured is valid. There are hypotheses to test the validity of the mathematical problem-solving ability test instrument and the learning independence questionnaire instrument:

H0: instrument item is not valid

Ha: instrument item is valid

The validity test in this study will be used SPSS with Pearson Correlation. The basis for decision-making uses the correlation value. If count table, then H0 is rejected, and Ha is accepted. The results of the validity test output will be displayed in tabular form.

Reliability Test

Reliability testing is related to the issue of whether an instrument is accurate and reliable and matches the criteria that have been set (Arifin, 2010). To test the validity of the mathematical problem-solving ability test instrument and the learning independence questionnaire instrument, the following hypotheses will be formulated:

H0: the instrument is not reliable

Ha: reliable instrument

This study's reliability test will use SPSS with Cronbach's alpha. The basis for decision making is the limitation in reliability testing: the Cronbach alpha coefficient > 0.70 , then H0 is rejected, and Ha is accepted. The results of the reliability test output will be displayed in full.

For data analysis, techniques are used as follows.

Normality test

The normality test aims to detect the distribution of the data distribution of a variable from a population that is normally distributed or not (Sugiyono, 2015). The data of a variable that is feasible to use is usually distributed; when the distribution of the data is expected, the data can be said to represent the population. To perform the normality test, the following hypothesis will be formulated:

H0: data is usually distributed

Ha: data is not normally distributed.

The one-sample Kolmogorov-Smirnov test in the SPSS program can be used to calculate the normality test. The basis for decision-making in the normality test is the Asym value. Sig. > 0.05 , which means H0 is accepted. The results of the normality test output will be displayed in complete form.

Multicollinearity Test

The multicollinearity test aims to test whether the regression model found a correlation between mathematical problem-solving ability (X1) and the variable of learning independence (X2). A good regression model is that there is no multicollinearity. To test multicollinearity, the following hypothesis will be formulated:

H0: data occurs multicollinearity

Ha: the data does not happen multicollinearity

The SPSS-assisted multicollinearity test was carried out by looking at the Tolerance value and its opposite, namely VIF. Tolerance value 0.10 or VIF value ten, then H_0 is rejected, and H_a is accepted.

Heteroscedasticity test

The heteroscedasticity test aims to test whether there is an inequality of variance from the residuals of one observation to another. Ghozali (2018) explains that a good regression model does not occur heteroscedasticity; in other words, homoscedasticity occurs. To test heteroscedasticity, the following hypothesis will be formulated:

H_0 : data appears heteroscedasticity

H_a : data does not happen heteroscedasticity

The heteroscedasticity test will be carried out with SPSS. The basis for making decisions on the output is a scatterplot with points spread above and below the number 0 on the Y-axis and do not form a specific pattern, then H_0 is rejected, and H_a is accepted.

Linearity Test

(Sugiyono, 2015) revealed that the linearity test aims to test whether there is a linear relationship between each independent variable and the dependent variable. To test the Linearity of each independent variable on the dependent variable, the hypothesis will be formulated as follows:

H_0 : there is a linear relationship

H_a : there is no linear relationship

Test of Linearity with the help of SPSS can be used to test Linearity. For the Test of linearity method on the output results, if the value of Sig. On Linearity < 0.05 or the value of Sig. On Deviation from Linearity > 0.05 , then H_0 is accepted.

Multiple Regression Analysis

The purpose of multiple linear regression analysis is to determine whether there is an influence between two or more independent variables on the dependent variable. A multiple linear regression line equation with two predictors will be formed according to the output generated by SPSS. Furthermore, the multiple linear regression equation models will be interpreted as the meaning of the constant value, the value of the coefficient of X_1 , and the value of the coefficient of X_2 .

Hypothesis testing

Coefficient of Determination

The coefficient of determination, called R^2 , aims to measure the percentage of the influence of the independent variables (X_1 and X_2) on the dependent variable (Y). The size of the coefficient obtained shows how capable the independent variable's variation is used in explaining the dependent variable's interpretation. Finding the coefficient of determination using SPSS is done by looking at column R^2 (Adjusted R Square), the numbers that show how big the contribution of the influence of mathematical problem-solving ability and independent learning on mathematics learning achievement.

Partial Test (t-Test)

The t-test aims to determine the partial significance of the role between the independent variables on the dependent variable. To perform the t-test, the following hypotheses will be formulated:

H0: there is no significant effect partially

Ha: there is a somewhat significant effect

The t-test was carried out with the help of SPSS based on decision making, the value of count > table, or the value of Sig. <0.05, which means H0 is rejected and Ha is accepted.

Simultaneous Test (F Test)

F test aims to determine the significance of the role simultaneously between the independent variables on the dependent variable. To perform the F test, the following hypotheses are needed:

H0: there is no significant effect simultaneously

Ha: there is a significant simultaneous effect

The F test was carried out with the help of SPSS based on decision making, the value of Fount > F table or the value of Sig. <0.05, which means H0 is rejected and Ha is accepted.

RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

T Test Results

Table 1
T Test Results
Coefficients^a

Model	t
1 (Constant)	10,87 7
Mathematics Problem-Solving Ability	2,478
Learning Independent	5,503

a. Dependent Variable: Learning Achievement

Based on table 1, it is known that the count value for the mathematical problem-solving ability variable is 2.478, and the count value for the learning independence variable is 5.503, which means both count values > table. The Sig value for the variable of mathematical problem-solving ability is 0.019 < 0.05. It is concluded that H0 is rejected, so the value of Sig. is in the area Ha. In other words,

Commented [U5]: Please improve the appearance of your table according to the journal template.

the mathematical problem-solving ability has a significant effect on learning achievement. In line with the statement of Nanang (2012), problem-solving is a fundamental and essential ability in mathematics. Research Malina et al. (2021) reinforced that students' mathematical problem-solving abilities affect student achievement by 66%. Students with good mathematical problem-solving skills will find it easier to process and solve the math problems they face.

The results of the t-test hypothesis test showed that the value was $0.000 < 0.05$. This means that H_0 is rejected, so the value of Sig. is in the area H_a . In other words, the learning independence variable significantly affects the learning achievement variable. In line with the statement, Asmar & Delyana (2020) say that student learning independence is an effort made by students to be able to carry out learning activities independently based on their motivation to master certain materials that can increase the value of learning achievement, Relevant also to research Uki & Ilham (2020)) which states that there is 72.59% of the influence given by the independent learning variable on mathematics learning achievement. Students who have independence in learning will be beneficial for learning, especially when learning online.

F Test Results

Table 2
F Test Results
ANOVA^a

Model		Sum of Squares	Df	Mean Square	F	Sig.
1	Regression	663,659	2	331,830	38,459	,000 ^b
	Residual	250,216	29	8,628		
	Total	913,875	31			

a. Dependent Variable: Learning Achievement

b. Predictors: (Constant), Learning Independent, Mathematics Probel-Solving Ability

Based on table 2, the F count value is 35.378 while the t table value is 3.32, which means that the F count > F table. Value of Sig. is $0.000 < 0.05$. This means that H_0 is rejected and H_a is accepted. In other words, the variables of mathematical problem-solving ability and independent learning simultaneously or together significantly affect the learning achievement variable. The magnitude of the influence of mathematical problem-solving ability and learning independence on mathematics learning achievement is explained by the coefficient of determination. The output results show the Adjusted R Square value of 0.707. This shows that 70.7% of learning achievement variables can be influenced by the mathematical problem-solving ability and learning independence variable. While the rest ($100\% - 70.7\% = 31.1\%$) is influenced by other variables outside the model.

Commented [U6]: Please improve the appearance of your table according to the journal template.

CONCLUSION

Based on the results of research and data analysis, and interpretation of test results, it can be concluded that mathematical problem-solving ability has a significant effect on learning achievement in mathematics, and learning independence has a significant impact on learning achievement in mathematics based on the interpretation of the t-test that t count $5.503 > t$ table $2,045$, and solving ability Mathematical problems and learning independence have a significant effect on learning achievement in mathematics based on the interpretation of the F test that F count $38.459 > F$ table 3.32 . The percentage of the influence of mathematical problem-solving ability and learning independence on mathematics learning achievement is 70.7% .

REFERENCES

(Arifin, 2010)

- Afifah, E. P., Wahyudi, W., & Setiawan, Y. (2019). Efektivitas Problem Based Learning Dan Problem Solving Terhadap Kemampuan Berpikir Kritis Siswa Kelas V Dalam Pembelajaran Matematika. *MUST: Journal of Mathematics Education, Science and Technology*, *4*(1), 95–107. <https://doi.org/10.30651/must.v4i1.2822>
- Arifin, S. (2010). *Evaluasi Pembelajaran Prinsip Teknik Prosedur*. Remaja Rosdakarya.
- Asmar, A., & Delyana, H. (2020). Hubungan Kemandirian Belajar Terhadap Kemampuan Berpikir Kritis Melalui Penggunaan Software Geogebra. *Aksioma2*, *9*(2), 221–230. <https://doi.org/10.24127/ajpm.v9i2.2758>
- Ghozali, I. (2018). *Aplikasi Analisis Multivariate Dengan Program SPSS*. Badan Penerbit UNDIP.
- Kuo, Y. C., Walker, A., Schroder, K., & Belland, B. (2014). Interaction, internet self-efficacy and self-regulated learning as predictors of student satisfaction in online education courses. *The Internet and Higher Education*, *20*, 35–50. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.iheduc.2013.10.001>
- Malina, I., Yuliani, H., & Syar, N. (2021). Analisis kebutuhan e-modul fisika sebagai bahan ajar berbasis PBL di MA muslimat NU. *Silampari Jurnal Pendidikan Ilmu Fisik*, *3*(1), 70–80. <https://doi.org/10.31540/sjpif.v3i1.1240>
- Nanang, N. (2012). Meningkatkan Kemampuan Siswa dalam Pemecahan Masalah Matematik melalui Pendekatan Metakognitif. *Mosharafa: Jurnal Pendidikan Matematika*, *1*(1), 1–8. <https://doi.org/10.31980/mosharafa.v1i1.166>
- Sugandi, A. I. (2013). Pengaruh pembelajaran berbasis masalah dengan setting kooperatif jigsaw terhadap kemandirian belajar siswa SMA. *Infinity Journal*, *2*(2), 144–155. <https://doi.org/10.22460/infinity.v2i2.31>
- Sugiyono. (2015). *Metode Penelitian Pendidikan (Pendekatan Kuantitatif, Kualitatif, dan R&D)*. Alfabeta.

Sukardi. (2013). *Metodologi Penelitian Pendidikan: Kompetensi dan Praktiknya*. Bumi Aksara.

Tirtonegoro, S. (2011). *Anak Super Normal dan Program Pendidikanya*. Bima Aksara.

Uki, F., & Ilham, A. (2020). Pengaruh kemandirian belajar siswa terhadap prestasi belajar di sdn 03 limboto barat kabupaten Gorontalo. *Aksara: Jurnal Ilmu Pendidikan Nonformal*, 6(1), 89–95.
<https://doi.org/10.37905/aksara.6.1.89-95.2020>

(Ghozali, 2018)(Kuo et al., 2014)(Malina et al., 2021)(Nanang, 2012)(Sugandi, 2013)(Sugiyono, 2015)(Sukardi, 2013)(Tirtonegoro, 2011)(Uki & Ilham, 2020)(Afifah et al., 2019)